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. . SUMMARY 
... ; ....•-.;..... : 

1. From approximately January 2002 thfough July2007,GlobalSantaFe 

Corp. ("GSF") violated the anti-bribery, books and records, and internal controls 

provisions ofthe Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (the "FCPA") when GSF made illegal 

payments through customs brokers to officials of the Nigerian Customs Service ("NCS") 

in order to obtain preferential treatment during the customs process for the purpose of 

assisting GSF in retaining business in Nigeria. 

2. Instead of moving its oil drilling rigs out ofNigerian waters when GSF's 

pennit to temporarily import the rigs into Nigeria had expired, GSF, through its custo~s 



brokers, made payments to NCS officials in order to obtain documentation reflecting that 

the rigs had moved out ofNigerian waters, when in fact, the rigs had not moved at all. 

3. GSF, through its customs brokers, made other payments, such 

as, so called "interventions," to Nigerian customs officials in order to obtain preferential 

treatment during the customs process. 

4. In addition, GSF, through its customs brokers, madepayments to 

, ,government officials in Gabon, Angola, and Equatorial Guinea in.Oider.to obU$1 

"preferential'treatInentduringthe'custcims process. These paymeiitsWet~described 011 

invoices as, for example, "customs vacation," "customs escort," "costs extra p()!iceto 

obtain visa," "official dues," and "authorities fees." 

. .' ... :~ ..-' 

5. '.'".' ]3y ni~ngthepaY:fi.lentsdescripe<iin paragrapN;tw()thn:lUghfout~~ove" 
." ," ." 

" . -' . .:: '.' ::. . . '. ~ . .:" . ,'.. ~'. ".:. ~... " -'.. . 

,GSF profitedin the amount ofapproximately $2.7 million by avoiding customs-:,related 
.. ~ "-" . ,', 

". t···, 
, '" GOs~s., incI.udillg,those~s_6dated ...... ".", - .':. " .:..; . -. 

with,a¢t(ialiyphysically mQving'the:'rig'outofNigerjan, .' , 
'. . ".' . ". "', ,." .. , ','. 

....'; .. 

"..::., 
.......... ," ;:,'wat~t~~'hri4:g~~g;rey~nries;irortrfiotinterriqJtihg .its:(fr.iIlhig,:6p'~ra~i&i1s. ~dupng:ahi?v~~:~,,;
 

".:' ...:... ....,. .;." ".......- '.:"';,-,-: ,., ...
 
'6. None~ftIiepa~ent~was accurately reflected'lnGSF'shooks""; 

',- andtecords,iior wcciasF's syst~mofinternal accounting controls ~d~~~~t¢atth~'tirn.l{to 

detect and prevent these payments. 

7. As a result of this conduct, GSF violated Sections 30A, 13(b)(2)(A) and 

13(b)(2)(B) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. 

§§ 78dd-l, 78m(b)(2)(A) and 78m(b)(2)(B)] and the Conimission seeks permanent 

injunctive relief, disgorgement of gains wrongfully obtained and a civil penalty. 

JURISDICTION 

8. This court has jurisdiction over this action under Sections 2 I (d), 21 (e), 
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and 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d), 78u(e) and 78aa]. GSF, directly or 

indirectly, made use of the II!eans or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, ofthe 

mails, or ofthe facilities ofa national securities exchange in connection with the 

transactions, acts, practices, and courses ofbusiness alleged in this Complaint. 

9. Venue is appropriate in this Court pursuant to Section 2I(d) of the 

Exchange Act[I5U.8.C. §78,u(4)].·:· 

DEFENDANT . :' ..... 

10~' GlobalS~lIlteFe "Corp.;dtiringthe relevant jJeriod,was in'corporated itlthe ' '. 

.' Cayman Islands and had its headquarters in Texas..GSF provided offshore oil and gas 
, 

drilling services for oil and gas exploration companies. GSF, acting through its direct 

. subsidiary Glbb~IOffsp.or.et?rill~ng.Ltd,:~yp.g(}gyd·inthe:acti:vityi.n)V~stAfrica.d~~cribed,: 
. - . ':'. . -..'.. ... ". - '. '.' '. . . .".'", 

: . _.~: ' .. ". '. ~ . ..;., ..... . .'. . ~ , ", 

herein. GSF's securities Were registered With th,e Commission pursuant to Section 12(b) 
.:', :: ~.. ,::.,:_ .,,"; ," . ' . ;. .,' :".c :'.:, ..: ..;.:.: <." . ", -~. ',:' "," '" ' '~".':'.' '. ..:,-.".=.., .... '., 

",' . ~ . ," . "' .. 
-..~- ..~.:of.t~e Exchange Act:artd4rad~~'ori',tl1eN~w¥Qrk St9clcEkchange:" '.. . . ..: : '_.,..... : 

.. . 

~ .- ..... " 

.-. •:.> .....''1·~,:.·::-:···:· 6JiNo~~tril>¢t~i7~ .*bb7i:'9SF-c6niPI~t~·~:iiieri~ftvilli.as~~Sia~~::Of-·".·'~;'?:; .' '.','~. 

':. ::.,' .. 
: ..•.. . :~.:.•'.' .':' ~":'~'.:~"!-:' _. ':; .. ~ ", .:. . . ;..... :' ".: •• -::. •'0 ••• • :'.. :.' 

Transoce~Inc~'andbetatn~kii6WnasTtIDisocean:Wdt1d~de,lrit.,whith isa sub'sidi,ary """:'.' 
• "',' • e'- ,-'. ." •• '. _ ••," • ," • • 4 • _ _. 

FACTS 

I. The Temporary Importation Permit Process in Nigeria 

12. During the relevant period, in order to import offshore drilling equipment, 

including rigs, into Nigeria on a temporary basis, oil and gas services companies were 

required to obtain a temporary importation permit ("TIP") from the Nigerian government 

through NCS. 

13. In addition to completing a series ofpaperwork to obtain a TIP, GSF was 
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required to register arid maintain a bond with a Nigerian bank in the amount of the value 

of the rig and equipment being temporarily imported. 

14. TIPs were initially issued for one year and were allowed to beextended 

twice for a period of six months each. In addition, rarely, and only in the discretion of 

NCS officials, a thir.d six-month extension could'be graIlt~d.· 

15. Prior to or after the expiration ofall·permissibleTI.R~xtensi()Ils,· aSF was 
'::': ,".' 

.... required to move itsIigsoutofNigerianwatersandr~coInmencethe TIP applicati6n· 
.". ,," .. .." 

. .... . process.'GSFwoiild'haVe to canceIorlet lapse the existirigTIP'and:bbiid;'lli:i'd:apply fora' 

new initial TIP and then re-register a bond with a bank for the' is;uance ofa new one-year.. 

TIP. 

16. Failing to exp()rt a rig after theexpiraiion QfaT.IP and ~l peirpissjple , 
, . .' .' .':-. ..- :,., ."' . , . 

. ~ . -' 

exte~sion~' ;e~d~redth~ .rigsubj~ctto po~~ntialforfeitUre'~r sei~e. '. 
__.. :"'..:.}:(~.::' .:.i·"'·<S·, >.,.._ ~.>.: ..~.:.:. "," ;::.;. ,,; ~..: :,-_.. ~..:.; ..>_,~ ' .. :..":'";:'<::';:-"+:'._ .. ~.~:',:,:,,:' ::::':";;":,'_' ';. ':',.~ ',: 

.)7. :Toph¥~icaIiy export its rigs outofNige$tKwater.§~tJSF:,am9ng:pther 

. :/~-tlllngs, ileetled.to:hir~.qrre~()fm6remg.bOa~:\ E·~~h:#~iii6V~~6s:{sev~~Lhtiliar~(r. 
: .... 

thousand dollars.' 
.....' ."\ ."' 

< ·l~:.·:···;jO:avdl(tbotli'-ili.e c~st9fexporting~thengsit6ih···iqig~rli1h~~ters~ari(fthe 

decreased revenues associated with moving its rigs out ofNigeria, GSF paid bribes, 

through its customs broker, to officials ofNCS in order to obtain false paperwork which 

reflected that GSF's rig had moved out of and back into Nigerian waters, when, in fact, 

the rig never left Nigerian waters. 

19. From approximately January 2002 through July 2007, GSF engaged in at 

least 4 of these "paper moves.,,1 

A single paper move is counted as one paper export and subsequent paper import as opposed to 
counting separately each paper export and subsequent paper import. 
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II. The Adriatic VIII's Two Paper Moves 

20. The Adriatic VIII, a 328fdotjack-up rig, was aGSF rig performing 

drilling work in,Nigeria for various oil company clients during the 2002 through 2007 

time period. 

21. .... GSF obtained its initial twelve-montliTIP from NCS'ror the Adriatic VIII 

.•..:., . ··Qn Oc~~bet17~4Q02andtwo additional six-month TIP extensions valid from OCtoberl6~ . , ~ .... 

.... :.'40P3, and April 16,. 2004, r~s,pectively~...;.'" .. 

: '.: - :: .. ' ". '22.:' Accordirtgly;pursuant to~~se20ndl'IP"eitension~anted ott Apnl16, .'. ' 

2004,GSF was authorized by NCS to Iriaint~in the Adriatic VIII in Nigerian waters until 

October 15, 2004. GSF did not obtain a third discretionary extension, and thus, on or 

beforeOctDbe(15, 2004, the rig should have left Nigerian waters until NCS appr6vedffie 
.. ".' ..•.. '". . . • . ..• : ~:: . . i.·". ; ....:. ".,. .' . . . ~. . .:.. ", - : .':.' - - ;;. ." '., -• 

. - ., '.:' ," .~... ,". 
. ~. . -. ..:~ . .'./' ........ ;"•. _._ ".' .:--'0_: 

.iSsUa.n~e.of a ~ew one-year TIP.' ...... ".. 

••••••••••:.;........ ..,." .:.~" .:';',,'" A <:· .. ~,.·.:· .. :-.:·,·.:,·:;i:~.···· 

,""H;i,()ti4!;,~MfP~ginPIrtgijf.l ....a.:.teS~. p.•. tember 2004.". nSF,,~oiighit~;:ctis.t6mtb~$4~t,tci~~.·::;::,:'::..... 
. .. "." ".' . '. <::::> . :.-. . .'.~ 

: .. ' 
: .~: .. ' •..... s~epsto obtainfalsedocUmentaiion from NCS. The documentation boreanNCS ',

.. ".', i~sigirl~, official stamps, ~d oth~r signattiies ofNeS 0ffieiills; h~cluding.a "release for 

outward clearance," reflecting that the Adriatic VIII left Nigeria on September 29,2004. 

24. GSF, through its customs broker, obtained this documentation by making 

payments to'officials ofNCS. GSF paid its customs broker $87,500 to obtain the new 

TIP, including a payment of$3,500 identified on the customs broker's invoice as 

,"additional charges for exporf' (emphasis added). 

25. Payment was made to GSF's customs broker by wire transfer from a bank 

account in the name of GSF located in the United States. 
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26. GSF managers iil Nigeria, acting on behalfof GSF, knew that the Adriatic 

VHlhad nevefactually left Nigerian waters arid knew, or knew that there Wa$ ahigh 

probability, that the explanation on the invoice as "additional charge5!for export;' wasfor 
. ~ . ".. ~ . -. .' . '. "". '. . .... '. . 

the purposes ofdisguising a bribe. 

·27. A few years later, in May 2007, GSF,through ~ts.customs~br9ker.again
',.. ..: . .' -.'. ". - . 

...obtained false documentation from.NCS·re:&e.cting· that the Adriatic VIII ha~ leftNlgerian
"":'", 

..... ". ,; . .": 
" .' ,,';".; ," .' :':."'~. ", 

. -"", , ';., ..~. .,.. :: ~. " 
-."; ". 

.' .:.' 

.~aters when, in fact, iihad not. GSF tiltimatdydid not a~thorize reimbursementt(Yits' ...., '. : 
.: ; .,.. :. . . , ;.:.,' " " . . . 

. ,':.. :. ,"," 

III. TheAdriatic I and Baltic I Paper Moves 

28. In March 2004, GSF, through its customs broker, again paid Nes officials' 

. . ~.. :.. . . i~ ordettoobtain false documentatiqn for a paper rnov~ fQi'erSF:.s.. ~4riatic.I#g~ <. 
:':~' 29:' ~~re specifically,:~~j~u~14,2002" GSFobtailled i~initiaI tw~lve.. ".··"::·. '. 

- ,;" 

.. '..; ".';'.'.. " :', ·In.()PthT~f!9.ll1~~~~~>;~;~~~~;a~i~·~ ~~t~~·.rt~~iti~~~·~i~~~bn~;~1.r:~:~:n~i~:,O~"····'·:· , .:..;.", .. 

. .: ..~ . 
. '~'" . 

.30. Accordingly, pursu~t to' itssecpnd TIP ext~nsi~1l: granfed6n A1:l~ti~ .'... 

".~ 
. '.'2003;:GSF;waiHliitho.rii&tby·;NC·S:'t(}~nuiin~ilie';A.di1~tihlinNig~fuitiir~i~is'~tll":;. 

January 31, 2004. GSF did not obtain a third discretionary extension, alidthus, on or 

before January 31, 2004, its rig should have left Nigerian waters until NCS approved the 

issuance ofa new one-year TIP. 

31. However, the Adriatic I did not leave Nigerian waters on or before 

January 31,2004. Instead, GSF, through its customs broker, obtained documentation 

from NeS, reflecting that the Adriatic I left Nigeria on January 31, 2004 when, in fact, it . 

had not. 
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32. In July 2004, GSF, througIt its customs broker, again paid NCS officials in 

order to obtain false documentation for a paper move for GSF's Baltic I rig. 

33. More specifically, on June.4, 2002, GSFobtained its initi~ twelve-month 

TIP from NCS fOfthe Baltic I and two additional six-month TIP extensions on June 4, 

2003, andDecember 4, 2003, respectively. 

34... i\scording~y,pursmili.tto' its. s¢~ondiIR.~xte~siongranted on December4, 
,'.... ','.," 

, .. ' 2003,GSFw~allfuop.zed by NCS t~ rn,ainWn th.e Bal!lC IinNig~!ianwat~r&~til June .•..•••.•.... 
'. .' '. • ~ •• ': .:, .' •• ... "" .. "< :'. • • • .:.:..-~".' .' • -: .' , ." ••••; ., •••• 

~' .. ,'.	 3,2004~GSFdid-nolobtaina third-discretionaryextension, and thus; on or before: JUt1e";' .
 

3,2004, its rig should haveleffNigerianwaters until NCS approved the issuance of a
 

new one-year TIP.
 

,35...,., However,the Baltic I did,ilOtleaveN~geJianwaters onJune 3, 2004. 
•".. • ··f -.':. . .," .. ,' :'.' 

.". :". 

."i~stead;j~ }une'2004~ .GS~, ilir()~gh'its custoIlls' broker~ to~k. steps to obtain -. . > .. 
.. ::..,,: '." .: :2,~" . 

;';::..'" ..; ,.-	 ',:;.~ .' 

'0 dp~tim6n.tation.frQ.InN<;'S, reflecting:thattheBaJ!icJ le~Nigena oil,J,urte.25; 2091:,' .'., 
.' .•.•.••.•.-:" - .• " .: '.'-. - ..•. ' •.:. -' ..... ", .••.• .,'." ", ' •. - ...• ' ," ", "'. ...• .:. ;···· .."·f 

·:::~.>;;,:;::,::;q:~:;~··;:~;·:,~~;G~~1l1an~g¢~,:~~¢tifi~:~n.;~b~lutlf~f9~E;A1i~9rized{andsubmitt~<lfor:.·0 ., •• , •• :, .• 

.,." .'... 

.' .' ,,-,pa~~Jt-ihv6lces t~h~aitiIrii:~h~ges 'describedaS~~~~ditibn~l~har~es f~; exporf" wh~~ 

··.·the:·sanie.GSF:·~~~ger~:krie~,th~{theqSF:'Bg·liadriotbeeii;exP?ned·fr9m.Nlg~na.•• 

Thus, the GSF managers either knew that the "additional charges for export" were bribes, 

or knew that there was a high probability that they were bribes. 

37. The payments by GSF through its customs brokers to Nigerian customs 

officials for documentation relating to paper moves were made from bank accounts in the 

United States. 
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38. By engaging in the above-referenced paper moves,GSF (1) avoided costs 

of approximately $1.5 million from not physically moving the rigs; and (2) gained 

',"':' 

revenlles6fapproximately $619,000 fromnot interrupting operations to move the rigs: 

~ " 

39. None ofthe p~ymen~s relating to the paper moves discussed above was 

.accm-ately reflected in 9SF's books, and records. 
.' ..... 

' .. ' 

"':,' "':'.:.':' 
..,~ ' .. 

. . : ..... 

;. '40'/'" By making the payments to Nigerian c.ustomsofficials thfoug},i. its customs "." 
.', .. " 

........•. bro~er~in.co~e¢tiori Witllthe papermo~es.despibedabov~,GSF ~iolatecltl1eantA-: "';~' .. ' 

'~:·briberypr,.WisioDsof:theF:CPA:" :'. ':' .';. -:"" ':.. ':":.~':-:: -..:':,::, ':'..,.!, . :.::.: . -.", ~.. 

, ... .; 

. IV~ Other sti$pidous Payments in Nigeria 

c··· 

".,.. 

41. During the relevant period, GSF, through its customs brokers, made a 

. ":~.,. 

...~ . : .," 

,. ; 

........... ,' . 

".: 

.. ::..... '.~ •. , ~ .' . 

:.' - :..;' ,' ..:.-: ::: .. 

. ....-_ ...,....•. ';.:..... .,. ....' •........ 

"X .':~b¥o~~,~;in~~kaii;!ilJ,ie~t!riliQii\;;,;~o~~~fu's~iof~·s; ',' 
~.:. '.~' ..... :. .:.' '.: ,.' ..; ~.'" "." '-".~' ..-. : .' -...:' .:::: . 

... Adria.tic 'Vrrig~" . . 

-' .. 

.' '. ",:) ,.~:.:., A $4:?t'ObD~paYnientin,(ic~9b~rg.004~jd~9~ifie49ti·.itSC.~·§t6nis.;' . ..... .... , 

:... ' . .;: , . ,;' .. .'. :'. 

.~. $82;000. Among these p~yme~ts werethefollowirig: 

'...•.• ~ . munber dfaddition~'paTIIJ.erits to governmeJ1!oftiCi~~ in:Nig¢ria t9taliPg'appioxupa,teJy
."' .t.: .. ":. ... . . '=: " ;. ,. • • •••-:;•••~. _• ••••• • • .' ", ~. .::: • .; •••• :. .: •• • ... :._ •• '. •_, • r.; '.'_.• . ' . :. ..' .' •• .' . • ." : .'.: 

..... , 

..: . .-. 
··f·· ....· . 

',:. 

invoice as an "intervention" for GSF's Adriatic VI rig. . 

• An approx!mately $13,000 payment in Apri12002 to obtain fraudulent 

paperwork from NCS officials for a backdated TIP extension for 

GSF's Adriatic V. 

• A $4,734 payment in June 2002 for the puipose of "retaining" i.e. 

keeping open a TIP on GSF's Adriatic I rig for the time when the rig 

left Nigeria and returned in June 2002. 
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42. None of these paymenu;'was accurately reflected in GSF's bOoks and 

records. 

43. By making the.above-referenced paymeiJ.~~ GSF'~rvoidedcostsand gained 
'.~ ", . 

'. revenues of approximately $268,000. 

v. Other Suspicious PaymentS in Angola, Gabon, and:EquatorialGuinea
.' '. ··.·,:L , . .f: 

+"'';.<.. 

'. . 

::::;:. 

. ,": . 

":.,: ..... 

" .~.'. 

':'::':,.:-. :-"'-":.:",:,,: 

"': " 

.~ '. '. ..' 

USF, through i~s_custoili$brokers,.also IIla4ea~I1wribeihfothefpayments44. 
.: .... : ...:. 

.dUringtheteltwatttperiod totalingapproxUilately ~$300,OOO to.gpv~rnmellto:ftici31Sm . 

Gabon, Angola;' and Equatorial GumeB.:' .. ' ' 

45. Among these payments were the folloWing: 

.....' 

.•.. :... 

• An approximately $12,400paymentin Angolafor "official dues." 

,', .' 

..' .:;~ .. '-. 

. ':-'-. 

.- ;-... 

'., 

'. ~ ',: 

.... 

• .'13paynJ:ents'for "cus~ollls ~scort" iil QabOIi ~otalirig·apptoximately. 
. ::.. ~. " ;.... ".: :.: ;._: ,..••."..• , ,., ,t.: . .-•.; - •...• . ,:,,:.:.. ,:"., -, ~ .~~'. :,;, .. ,.~ ~. " .. ". ',' ', .. 

• .A.$~,497 paymentin·f.\ngplaf~r~'~uth.oritie~Jee~:':~:.· .. ,<. 

.;,".:; 

. .:. : . 

" '," ,: 
. ~.' .t,' ::. ;. ," 

::' '. : .-.' .,: ....'.:! . , .. ,- .~ ... ',". 

",' .: ) ...... : .~... 
: .• ,':-. :':,"'f.'; 

. ... :... 

.< 

." ," 

'. ~ '. -. 

totaling approxinlatdy$130,OQO: ... .' 

. .... . .'.". 

$i 600:. - ,.' . 
';. • • • r •• 

.... '- ..~... ::55o~iyiiieht~;'for:~'c~o~~;pfe.-c.1~~~e~~:J~~Eq$tb~~f a~ea:, 
. :. '"'"'' .. '~.. "., .: ,'. :..:~:.:~··i ..:;: ... '.:~:.~"', . _. ~.: ...._. :; ... ; :'. ,":;' '..~.,:. 

. .."., -. -";'~" .:~. . .. 

. .';46:':' <~oIleSf'ilie.abd~e;.ref~iehcedill~galp~~~nt~HiNi~~ri<i;'Angol~, G~b6n," 

...... 

-::.:, ....... 
'. ;. 

....; ....... ,. 

and Equatorial Guitiea were accurately reflected iil GSF's books and records. Instead, 

·.thepayments were rec()rded as legitimate transaction costs such as "additional charges 

for export," ~'iiitervention," or "authorities fees," and thus were not fairly reflected or . 

accUrately recorded in its books, records, and accounts. 

47. Further, GSF failed to devise and maintain an effective system ofintemal 

controls to prevent or detect the above-referenced improper payments. GSF paid 

invoices that contained inadequate documentation to justify the charges. In addition, 
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GSF paid iilvoices'c~ntaining descriptions ofcharges that should have raised redflags 

and prompted further inquiry. For example, GSF paid, without further inquiry, invoices 

with descriptions such as: ~'intef\lention;" "customs formalitie~," "customsescort:' '. ";. - .. -.~'.' .:. . '. ... ::. .' . ~. . . ': ....~.,: ..". 

.... ,"customs fine," "customs overtime," and "customs vacation." This lack of effective 

illtemalcontrolsfacilitated.the improper payments described herein~' '. ". 
. . ... " .' ". ", ".... '. ..". . ". ~. . 

"." .." 

", ", .= ". ".:" .. FIRST CLAIM FORR£LIEF 

. .... : .. . ...• .... .GSFViolatedSe~tion 30A:of.th~· Exchaill!eAct~ " ..... • i'.' '. 
"':: . 

..,~ '. :. 
: ," .....:..: .(Anti-Bribery Pt6visions··otjheF6telgnC~rhipt.Pfactice~Aet) 

.... 

.. ":... ;.,,::'::.:> .. -"~, ... ;......;"" ..:;:.,:- .-:-.".: ":.... ". ".... . .'. ':.. :.~:. ~ .. ....' .'~. "..•.•.:' ... ~.:.- '".#' • . .' " .• " •. 

.-'- . 48.. ' ."P~agraphslthrotigh 47are~ealleged andincorporated herell1by ..' 
..."', . -. - ":. . . 

. reference. 

49. As described above in paragraphS 12 through 40 regarding the paper 
·-·'.'·.f. 

,,:;' , ~ ." 
:. '. ';" '.:. '.: . • . ., "1-' , ." • . . • ~ ~ , . , '~":.., ••• 

:' ,:. 

.' . '. ....• .'':'' ' .. "..~ ;:.' .~ ...:,.:.:. ,': ..~ ;.. lllOv~~;: QsF.'; :~:liS'.·issuer, $~de uSe .6.fthe~:wailsor othyr qi~a,ns.o~jnstrunieiltalitY.of. 

.. ': .....••... :..•...:, •....•.. ",. ',.a~thonzaHb~·of t~~paYmentoiany tnoney,or.6;er;·~~,·pro~i~et~gi~e, .~~ 
, J">(::";':": .::.~.:. Yt.~~: .~.~.\ ~~~: ';~:~:: .. :·<f::-\~:··.~;~··:}·;:::.·.·· ;' oJ.';' -:~~·;••:>-..-~~~+.)~~f .': ..' .=:i~.~. -' . . . -::.< ....). -': .'-: .. ~-. ." ,.,.' ">~~ ' • 

.';",...··')~pthq~ti9ii~fthe;:giyiD.g,6(Mythingo{~alue;to.foreignofiicials for.the,purpOsesof •••. 
.. " '., .• _. I ' .. . ~ . . ,.,.......
 ..... ':":." -~. . . . 

. ":..;..,.~ . .':"'~ 

'. ; ~ . 

use tlieiiirifluence, t~ assist the issuer in obtaining or retaining business. 

50. By reason of theforegoing, GSF violated, and unless restrained and 

enjoined, may continue to violate Section 30A ofthe Exchange Act [15 U.S.C § 78dd~1]. 
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SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

GSF Violated Sections 13(b)(2)(A) & 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act 
. (Company Records and lnte~al Controls) .' . 

51.'.Paragnlplls 1 throUgh 47 above are reallegedand incorporated by 
, ".!" 

reference herein. 

....., 
52. Section 13(b)(2)(A)of the Exphange Act requires comp~e.~tok~~p 

~. ," ;.,". ". 
" ;:.'. 

...... '. ··acc.ur~te.books~ records and accoupts which reflect fairly the tratlSactio~entere.dintobY 

53.·. SectionB(b)(2)(B}requirescompanies todcyiseand mai~tainasysteIIlof.... 

internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that transactions 

are recorded as necessary to pennit preparation of financial statements in confonnity with 
'. :..... 

'. " . ,::.. ,:.' :.;:.: ":ge.n~~ailY ac¢ep~~d~Gc,q~t1ng' pn~~it)les ()r,~y.d~~r,~~~Ij~.,~~~li~abl~,.to··S~~h " . "': ..• ;: : 
" 

:. statemeIits;'and,to tnaintaiIi'8.ccountability forsucKassets;~" .....:', 
" ..: .....-; 

,", . ·:5~.·.: __'-... B~.r~~O~ of~~fOregoil1g,d$'F"irii~ted'~ectionsf~~)(2)(A) ~d ," ',..

..... ,.-."",' .]i~)(2l{B)~i~r~~~~i~i~'li~'~:;.6;.~:;;;~~i*~}~:~;~.<.· 

,PRAYER FORRELIEF . 
-':'.:. c".".: "; '. -:. :-'J ..:.:;" .;.'".". 

:.:",,' 

.~ '.'.; ..: ".". ::., "" ." :;"., . . :.: :

;;'. ,": ..... ,. ..... :.~ ". 

. . -"'. . '" . ..".. .' 

:.: 

." :.....:.. 

.....J.~: 

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfiillyrequests that tms Court: 

(1) Enter a final judgment pennanently enjoining GSF from violating Sections 30A, 

13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) ofthe Exchange Act [15U~S.C. §§ 78dd:-1 and 

78m(b)(2)(A) & (B)]; 

(2) Enter a final judgment ordering GSF to disgorge gains wrongfully obtained as a 

result of its conduct; 

(3) Order GSF to pay civil penalties pursuant to Section 21 (d)(3) of the Exchange Act 

[15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)]; and 
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(4) Granttlle Commission such other and further relief as i$justand appropriate. 

Dated: November 41 2010 .. 
",':." ... ,'..:"
 

....."(:' : . '". :~~ "' .. " .
 

.R~;~1~. 
.-:. '~~llniB,:JosephS(D.CJ3arNo: 414519) . 

Lmda Berr8fati M()J;ail.{I.>.;C~ BarNo. 445759) ...... 
..A:rny L.Frlediriancp.C.13ar No. 473985) .~ ...•.. ,", ::., ..... ': 

. -.: . . 
.... Matth.ewW;Heff{~raIl (b.t. BarNc);4947t6) 

, .... ,.. -:-:;.' : .. , ':'::'". ':" ". ~ .: .. " . ; ..' ... ... ::...•...........<; ; .. :.•,. : .. :..;
 

Attorneys for Plaintiff .. ..-5." 

Securities arid Exchange Conlmission 
100 F Street, N.E. . 
Washington, DC 20549-501OA 
Tel: (202) 551-4968 (Josephs) 

\.,. . . ~ ..; 

.. : . 
.. ". 

.-:..... " ":...:_. 
f.3J.': (297.) 772,.;92J+._ ..... . 

•• , _ • ",' • t • ~ ••". _ ,~. ••• • • :. ::~ ~ 

.' . 
:> . 

", ; ':'.' 

.......: .... .::: .... . ..... ," '';' ..... :-" .: 
.::. ..... ,'. :'.,.. ' 

':'''''. ,f'" •. ; <•••• "" .. 

"':'," 

.. :: .. :t... :· 

.. 
.' 

.~. 

,....: .•... 
.", 

. '. . : . ...., ..... : ..•.. 
:. :'; 

.. '~"" 

12'
 


